
  

TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
WELFARE BENEFIT PLANS 

RFP 2014-0029 
 
 

The Town of Hilton Head Island is soliciting sealed proposals from qualified vendors to provide Life/AD&D 
and STD benefit coverage for its employees.     
 
Sealed proposals are due by 2:00 PM, October 29.  Sealed proposals should be hand carried or 
delivered by traceable means to the Town Receptionist at One Town Center Court, Hilton Head Island, 
SC 29928, and be clearly marked “RFP 2014-0029, Welfare Benefit Plans.”  Please submit 1 original and 
3 paper copies of the proposal.  Proposals must fully address requirements to be considered responsive. 
 
This RFP and exhibits may be viewed at www.hiltonheadislandsc.gov/government/procurement.  For 
questions about this RFP, contact Lisa Stauffer at 843-341-4624 or lisas@hiltonheadislandsc.gov. 
Questions or requests for clarification may be submitted in writing by no later than October 17.  
Responses will be published on the Town’s website as an RFP addendum. 
 
The Town reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals received as a result of this RFP, to 
negotiate with all qualified offerors, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this RFP if it is in the Town’s best 
interest to do so. 
 
This solicitation does not commit the Town to award a contract or to pay for any costs incurred in the 
preparation of your proposal or to procure or contract for any goods or services. 
 
Your proposal must be signed by an official of your company authorized to commit to and enter into a 
formal contract for goods and services.   
 
The Town does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability 
in employment or in the provision of goods and services.  
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RFP 2014 - 0029 Welfare Plans 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
The Town of Hilton Head Island (The Town) recognizes the need to create a competitive benefit program 
to help attract and retain qualified employees.  To this end, the Town is seeking bids for services relating 
to its welfare benefit coverage.  We are issuing this Request for Proposal (RFP) for Basic Term Life 
coverage, Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D), and Short-Term Disability (STD).  Your 
organization is invited to submit a proposal to provide the coverage and services described in the 
following pages.  This RFP is being made available to prospective bidders through electronic mail.  The 
information is also available on disk or in hard copy format upon request. 
  
II. GENERAL INFORMATION 
The Town has participated in the State of South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority Program for 
most of its health and welfare coverage since July 2000.  The Town will continue participating in the 
program for the following coverage: medical, dental, vision, basic and supplemental long-term disability 
(LTD), limited basic life ($3000), and supplemental life. 
 
The Town will evaluate and rank RFP responses using the published selection criteria.   
 
III. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Plan Design (Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2) 
A description of the current and proposed benefit plan designs is provided (Exhibit A-1).  For detail on the 
current plan design, please also refer to the summary plan descriptions (Exhibit A-2).  If your plans 
deviate from proposed design, please provide detail.   
 
Contributions (Exhibit B) 
The Town currently provides Basic Life/AD&D and STD to its employees at no cost.  Rate history and 
experience are provided in Exhibit B. 
 
Questionnaire (Exhibit C) 
You are required to complete the questionnaire. 
 
Financial Quote (Exhibit D) 
You are required to complete the fee exhibit (Exhibit D) provided in the RFP.  All fees should be quoted 
net of commissions.  For a proposal to be considered responsive, the following is required: 
 

a) No insurer responding directly to the RFP should include commission in the rates quoted or 
award commission to any third party, broker or agent in connection with the proposal. 

b) Agents or brokers responding to the RFP may include commissions, distribution costs or other 
costs in their proposals. 

c) Agents or brokers shall provide detailed information regarding services offered by their company 
in connection with commissions or other costs to be paid. 

 
Proposals will be evaluated on the total premium/cost.  Any response that includes a commission will be 
compared with those that do not include commission.  Total premium/cost is a significant factor in 
determining the respondent to be awarded a contract for these services. 
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While not a requirement, the Town prefers to bundle our Life Insurance/AD&D and STD plans with a 
single provider. 
 
Census 
Proposers who decide to respond to this RFP should contact Lisa Stauffer at (843) 341-4624 or 
lisas@hiltonheadislandsc.gov to obtain census information which will include: gender, age, 
salary, occupation, Basic Life/AD&D and STD coverage, and number of hours worked per week. 
 
Experience   
Experience is provided in Exhibit A of this document. 
 
IV. PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Proposal Timeline 
Proposal Distribution October 10, 2014 
Bidder Questions and Intent Due October 17, 2014 
Bidder Questions Answered October 22, 2014 
Sealed Proposals Due October 29, 2014 
Finalist Proposal Selection Made November 7, 2014 
Finalist Telephone Interviews Completed November 21, 2014 
Highest Ranked Proposal Selected December 3, 2014 
Coverage Selected/Implementation Starts December 8, 2014 
Effective Date January 1, 2015 

 
Due Date for Proposals 
Four mailed copies of your proposal must be received at the following address by October 29, 2014, at 
2:00 p.m. EST.  The proposals must be sealed and labeled “RFP 2014-0029, Welfare Benefit Plans”.  
Proposals should be addressed to: 
 
Lisa Stauffer 
Sr. Human Resources Administrator 
Town of Hilton Head Island 
One Town Center Court 
Hilton Head Island, SC  29928 
 
The sealed proposals duly delivered and submitted will be opened and evaluated on October 29, 2014, at 
2:30 p.m. EST.  Any proposal received after the stated closing time will be returned unopened.  
Until the final award, the Town reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals, to waive technicalities, 
to re-advertise, and to otherwise proceed when the best interest of the Town will be realized.   
 
Primary Contact for Confirming Intent to Respond and for Questions Regarding This Proposal 
Please respond, in writing, no later than October 17, 2014, indicating your intention to respond, the 
applicable services for which you are proposing, and any questions you have regarding this RFP.  Written 
responses should be directed to Lisa Stauffer by email at lisas@hiltonheadislandsc.gov , or by fax at 
843.341.3974, or by mail at the above address. 
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Criteria for Selection 
Proposals will be evaluated and ranked based on the following criteria: 
 
1. Proposed cost 
2. Proposed plan design 
3. Customer service (to include references from clients) 
4. Proposer’s financial strength and experience 
 
Proposal Format 
Your proposal must include the following information presented in order listed below: 
 
1. Cover letter 
2. Name and contact information of person responsible for the proposal 
3. Questionnaire 
4. Financial exhibits 
5. Completed references from clients – Provide minimum of 3 references from current clients describing 

proposer performance.  Client references must include email address, telephone number, type of 
insurance contracted, timeframe of service provided, and evaluation of proposer’s customer service.  
If necessary, clients providing references may be contacted by the Town later in the process if 
additional information is required. 
  

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Please read and follow instructions in the RFP document for submitting questions and proposals.  Firms 
that do not follow the instructions risk being disqualified from the process. 



EXHIBIT A-1:  SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND PROPOSED PLAN DESIGNS 
 
Basic Life & AD&D 
Current Contribution:  Employer Paid 
Anticipated Contribution:  Employer Paid 
 
 Current/Proposed 
Current Insurer Hartford Life and Accident Insurance Company 
Eligible Class All regular full-time and part-time employees (minimum of 20 

hours/week) 
Waiting Period None – eligible upon date of hire 
Benefit One times salary, rounded to the next higher multiplier of $1000, less 

$3000 provided by State Plan 
Limit $200,000 
Waiver of Premium Include to age 60 / Quote both age 60 & 65 
 
Short-Term Disability 
Current Contribution:  Employer Paid 
Anticipated Contribution:  Employer Paid 
 
 Current/Proposed 
Current Insurer Hartford Life and Accident Insurance Company 
Eligible Class All regular full-time and part-time employees (minimum of 20 

hours/week) upon date of hire 
Waiting Period When sick leave is exhausted or 30 days, whichever is later.  Please 

see below. 
Income Replacement 66.67% of basic earnings 
Maximum Duration 9 weeks – to cover day 30 – 90 (when LTD starts) 
Weekly Maximum $2,500 
 
Of the 238 current employees, 69 (29%) have sufficient sick leave balances to cover the 30-day 
waiting period and the 9-week STD benefit, making them ineligible for any STD benefits.   
 
24 employees have sufficient sick leave balances to cover the 30-day waiting period and to make 
them eligible for benefits for less than 5 weeks of STD benefits. 
 
47 employees have sufficient sick leave balances to cover the 30-day waiting period and to make 
them eligible for 5 to 9 weeks of STD benefits. 
 
The remaining 98 employees do not have sufficient sick leave balances to cover the 30-day 
waiting period and therefore would be eligible for the full 9-week STD benefit. 
 































































































EXHIBIT B:  LIFE, AD&D, AND STD PLAN EXPERIENCE 
 
 
Basic Life Insurance 
 
• Two employee deaths since 1/1/2011. 

 
Plan Year Rate Premiums Claims 

2014 (1/1-8/31) $0.317/$1,000 $35,047.52 $59000 
2013 $0.317/$1,000 $51,991.66 $0 
2012 $0.317/$1,000 $50,548.51 $0 
2011 $0.317/$1,000 $45,539.47 $67000 
 
 
Basic AD&D Insurance 
 

Plan Year Rate Premiums Claims 
2014 (1/1-8/31) $0.04/$1,000 $3,864.80 $0 
2013 $0.04/$1,000 $6,560.46 $0 
2012 $0.04/$1,000 $6,378.36 $0 
2011 $0.04/$1,000 $6,499.02 $0 
 
 
STD 
Status of Current STD claims: 
 
• No one is on STD at this time. 

 
Plan Year Rate Premiums Claims 

2014 (1/1-8/31) $0.128/$10 $19,133.93 $6,944.99 
2013 $0.128/$10 $28,041.47 $1,346.94 
2012 $0.128/$10 $26,384.44 $9,716.73 
2011 $0.128/$10 $25,900.66 $3,749.55 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT C:  QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

The following questionnaire solicits information concerning administration of the Town’s benefits plans.  
Please respond to all of the following questions and requests.   
 
General 
1. Please indicate your current ratings as published by A.M. Best, Standard & Poors and Moody’s. 
 
2. How much group life/AD&D volume and premium did your Company report in the last 2 years? 
 

 Year 1 Year 2 
Premium   
Volume   

 
3. How much STD volume and premium did your Company report in the last 2 years? 
 

 Year 1 Year 2 
Premium   
Volume   

 
 
4. Describe your reinsurance arrangement for groups similar in size to the Town. 

 
Financial 
5. How much notice will be given of a rate change?  The Town requires a minimum of 120 days. 
 
6. What are your standard contract exclusions for death benefits?  Would there be a change in your 

rates if a specific exclusion was removed? 
 
7. Would your Company be willing to guarantee premium rates for 3 years?  If yes, is there an 

additional load to the rate? 
 

8. Do your STD rates take into account the fact that employee sick leave accrual balances (many of 
which exceed 30 days) must be exhausted before STD coverage begins?   

 
Plan Design 
9. Are there any deviations from the plan design(s) requested?  If yes, please provide a list of any 

variances. 
 
10. We require transfer of coverage (guaranteed issue) for all actives.  Please confirm that you will 

comply. 
 
11. Describe your ability to modify benefit limits.   
 
 
Administration/Customer Service 
12. How will your Company assist in the initial enrollment and ongoing eligibility? What method will be 

used to communicate between the Town and your organization?  Identify options and costs. 



 

 
13. Describe the claim process for death, waiver of premium disability, and accidental death claims. 
 
14. What claim office(s) will adjudicate claims? 
 
15. Provide your actual performance results for each of the programs for the last calendar year – life 

and AD&D: 
• Claim turnaround time (% in number of days) 
• Percentage of claims audited 

 
16. Provide your actual STD performance results for the last calendar year: 

• Claim turnaround time (% in number of days) 
• Percentage of claims audited 
 

17. Please provide sample claim forms. 
 
18. Please describe your company’s online account management tools for employers and employees. 

 
19. Do you maintain toll-free telephone numbers for customer service? 
 
20. Does your firm provide a portability provision?  If so, please describe. 
 
21. Does your firm provide an accelerated death benefit?  If so, please describe? 
 
22. How do you handle follow-ups for data or suspense of STD claims to ensure that follow up does 

occur? 
 
23. Will you prepare supplemental W-2s for the Town at the close of each calendar year for STD, as 

requested?  Is there an additional cost for this service?   
 
Reporting/Communications 
24. Will you produce custom summary plan descriptions/insurance booklets at no cost to the Town? 
 
25. Please furnish samples of standard experience reports.  What is the frequency of these reports? 
 
26. Are you able to provide electronic reports rather than hard copies? 
 
27. Please provide sample enrollment materials. 
 
28. Will communication material be customized for the Town?  If so, are the associated costs included 

in the premium rates? 
 
Enhanced/Value-Added Services 
29. What value-added services differentiate you from other service providers? 

 
30. Why should we choose you to provide these services for the Town? 



EXHIBIT D:  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 
 
Basic Life & AD&D Rates 
  

Volume 
Monthly 

Premium Rate 
Monthly 
Premium 

Annual 
Premium 

Basic Life $14,425,000 $______/$1,000   
AD&D $14,425,000 $______/$1,000   
Rate Guarantee  #_____ of years                                                 
 
STD Rates 
  
Covered Employees 238 
Covered Payroll $192,512.49 
Monthly Rate per $10 of Covered Weekly Payroll $________ 
Monthly Premium  
Annual Premium  
Rate Guarantee (# of years)  
 
Figures above based on active employees on payroll as of 09/30/2014.   
 
Total annual budgeted headcount is 243. 
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